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Minutes:

Chm. Svedjan reconvened the Full House Appropriations Committee and took up HB 1377.
Rep. Thoreson, District 44, Fargo approached the podium, distributed testimony (Attachment
A) and testified in support of HB 1377 which will create a database of government
expenditures, leading to increased government transparency. Rep. Thoreson reviewed his
written testimony and concluded his remarks.

Rep. Kempenich: Your idea is like the ND state portal? Would you have a subsection on this?
Rep. Thoreson: Perhaps a separate Website that could easily be found.

Rep. Kiein: Looking at the Fiscal Note, | can't believe they're looking at that type of number to
set this up. That information must all be available in some form or other.

Rep. Thoreson: | believe it is also. Other states have done this at considerably less cost.
There are many solutions available already which you can purchase or in some cases states
are sharing at no cost. So | think we could find a way to do it for significantly less than the $1
million listed.

Rep. Bellew: Is there any way to track the number of hits on this Website to see if this is worth
the investment?

Rep. Thoreson: | believe there would be a way to do that.
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. Rep. Onstad: in these other states that do these, how current are the updates to their
Websites? Are they daily? Weekly? Monthly?
Rep. Thoreson: | do not have that information, but could get that for you. My intent would be
to update it on a regular basis.
Chm. Svedjan: OMB may talk about this.
Pam Sharp, Director, Office of Management and Budget, approached the podium. Ms.
Sharp distributed testimony (Attachment B). Ms. Sharp said that she is definitely in favor of
transparency. Ms. Sharp explained that she had locked at the Kanview Website and it is a
fabulous Website but that it is not live data. It is only updated once a year and she thinks
current information is more valuable. Regarding the Fiscal Note, it just says that we cannot do
it for less than $1 million. That is based on ballpark. | can’'t do an estimate for that. It would be
. a good idea for ITD to give a better estimate. In order to implement this is to have a data
warehouse and that first step has been taken. Ms. Sharp said that they are in contract
negotiations to get a data warehouse. The implementation of the data warehouse would take
at least eight or nine months and that doesn't take into account what you are asking for in this
bill. But we couldn’t do what you're asking for without that data warehouse. Another reason for
the $1 mitlion is that | don’t know where Higher Education is. | don’t believe they're currently
implementing a data warehouse. | don’t know what it would cost to get their information into a
searchable site as well.
Kanview did implement their Website for $200,000 which is cheap, but their circumstances are
different. NIC — the company which deals only with government agencies — developed their
Website for them. One of NIC’s models is that they develop e-applications and charge the

. public a fee to get that information through the portal. They don't charge for all their

applications.
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. OMB has been working on transparency. In March, there will be a Website (See Attachment B)
which Wil! be accessible to the public. Ms. Sharp reviewed the different reports included in
Attachment B.

Chm. Svedjan: When this is posted it would be done monthly?

Ms. Sharp: It would be done monthly.

Chm. Svedjan: And in a cumulative way? Would the second month include the numbers for
the first month?

Ms. Sharp: All of these reports will include current month activity and biennium to date activity.
Ms. Sharp continued her review of the different reports in Attachment B and pointed out that
the OMB monthly newsletter, Legislative Appropriations Book and the Comprehensive Annuai
Financial Report will be available online.

. Ms. Sharp referred the Committee to Section 1 of HB 1377 and reviewed what items in the bill
OMB is currently capturing and some of the information that is not being captured. OMB
currently captures a, b, ¢, d, and e of Section 1 (See HB 1377). Confidentiality and HIPAA
requirements may OMB from publishing the information in subsection b of the bill. OMB does
not capture subsections f, g, h, and Ms. Sharp is not sure how OMB would incorporate
subsection i. it is not part of the software at this time. She explained that if you want a
searchable database, the warehouse is the first step and ITD wouid need to help give direction
from there.

Rep. Kempenich: | think if we do what is in this bill, we need to explain what information the
user will be looking at. The public needs to be educated on the information. And what they are
looking at.

. Rep. Kaldor: In looking at the Kansas site, they do list specific expenditures to individuals. Are

they avoiding those expenditures that would violate HIPAA rules?
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. Ms. Sharp: | don't know.

Chm. Svedjan: For the plan you are doing now, what is the cost to OMB?

Ms. Sharp: We've been working on that internally, so it's just staff time.

Rep. Kaidor: The data you are gathering to build your data warehouse is coming off the
PeopleSoft system? Is that system friendly to build the database?

Ms. Sharp: We are building the data warehouse for (to accommodate) PeopleSoft. It will be for
PeopleSoft HR and financials.

Rep. Wald: On p. 3, Expenditures, Account number 35, Legislator Monthly Pay (Exhibit B).
Would we add the $43,794 to the $801,074 next month or is that for the total biennium?

Ms. Sharp: The biennium to date will always be cumulative including the current month.

Rep. Wald: So it's a running total?

. Ms. Sharp: Yes.

Rep. Hawken: If we list every person that got a check, then every month you would have each
legislator listed with a check that they got?

Ms. Sharp: | don't know if that would include payroll checks or just checks to vendors.

Rep. Hawken expressed that she agrees with transparency but thinks this bill may be going
too far with this bill. Ms. Hawken gave an example of her experience with the Schoot Board
doing this type of thing and how costly it is to do and that no one cares. She said that we need
to be careful what we ask for.

Chm. Svedjan: For what it is that you (Ms. Sharp) are proposing, it seems to contain much of
what is specified in Section 1 and subsections 2 and 3 of the bill. If there were to be

enhancements for you (OMB) are proposing, enhancements that would get into more detail,

. could that be done?
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. Ms. Sharp: | think what you're talking about is getting down to the transaction leve! which we
don’t have “drill down” capabilities on these reports at this time.
Chm. Svedjan: Based on what you (Rep. Thoreson) are seeing that OMB is doing right now
how does that fit with what you want to do?
Rep. Thoreson: | have spoken with the Director on this issue and | appreciate what they are
doing. | like the idea of drilling down to a level where, . . ., not putting down the name and
address of the recipients . . perhaps we could work on that. If we're not capturing those items
on lines 16, 17, etc., | would hope we could get to a place where at least some of that would be
able to be done. That's why there is language saying “information determined to be relevant by
the director of the budgets” is included.
Rep. Onstad: Referring to lines 16 and 17 of the bill, is that a general review of the major
. expenses? But if we get down to line by line expenditures, how would that be implemented?
Ms. Sharp: | don’t know how we would capture and expected performance outcome for each
expenditure.
Chm. Svedjan: The way it stands now agencies do some performance outcome measuring.
You can find that data in the more detailed budget. | wondered the same thing. How can you
drill it down? Is it even worth drilling it down to each expenditure and somehow tying that to an
outcome or a performance measure? | suppose it could be done but | . . .
Ms. Sharp: | don't believe we have the structure to allow for that.
Rep. Kerzman: | applaud what OMB is doing. My problem with transparency is that we look at
the budget side of it. Have you ever considered transparency when you're looking at boiler
room politics or rules and regulations that different departments put together? You can get out

. there in the field and somebody asks you a question and here it's some regulation that one of
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. the departments has come up with. It isn’t even legislation. How do we address that in
government?

Rep. Thoreson: That's a great question. If | an answer | would probably be sitting in the chair
in front rather than here. That's not what the scope of this bill would do.

Rep. Berg: Is there a way that we can set the stage to start moving in this direction without the
price tag? As we go through our computer updates, perhaps there could be some coordination
and this could be done as part of an ongoing project.

Ms. Sharp: | really do think we need ITD to look at that. We don't have a relationship with NIC
in them doing any other e-applications and in the research we did, our attorneys in the
Attorney General’s office did tell us that we didn't have the authority — we’d need some
legislation to allow a third party vendor to charge for those things.

. Rep. Nelson: In your conversations with the sponsors, were there any discussions on how
your (OMB's) Website mirrors what the legislation is asking? You're doing this within your
existing budget. Do we need a piece of legislation to enhance that if most of the points are
asking for are being addressed in your voluntary Website project?

Ms. Sharp: | don’t believe you need legislation for us to continue with what we are doing. If
you want us to have the searchable transactional database, we might need appropriation of
monies to do it.

Lynn Bergman, Civil Engineer/Journalist, spoke in support of HB 1377. Mr. Bergman
applauded this bill and addressed the “personal data” issue. In his experience, Mr. Bergman
had had his name and salary published in a newspaper. He went to the city and asked why
they couldn't list his title and the salary range. The city did make that change. Mr. Bergman

. thought the same type of discretion could be taken with this bill.
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. Mitch Vance, District 47 Chairman, Dem NPL Party, spoke in favor of HB 1377. Mr. Vance
expressed his strong interest in transparency. During his recent campaign he prepared a price
of government report. He learned that all the information needed was available on government
Websites but the problem was putting it together and facilitate the public understanding of what
the bottom line price of government was. The items required in this bill would facilitate the
public being able to understand public policy and public expenditures.
Rep. Nelson: After hearing Ms. Sharp’s testimony, does that meet your (Mr. Vance) criteria of
what you're asking for?
Mr. Vance: It meets many, but transparency needs to go one step further. It needs to be as
easy as possible. | have not seen the information you saw, a lot of what | want is in there.
Wayne Papke, Financial Advisor speaking on behalf of Citizens for Responsible

. Government, distributed written testimony (Attachment C) and presented his testimony from

| the podium. Mr. Papke spoke in support of HB 1377. In addition to his written testimony, Mr.

Papke commented on the Fiscal Note. He expressed that the push for Website data is so
tremendous; it's a profit item, not an expense item. He sees this as saving government man
hours versus employees manually retrieving and mailing and the associated costs.
No one spoke in opposition to HB 1377.
Bret Narloch, Executive of the North Dakota Policy Council, approached the podium as a
neutral speaker and to talk about the NDPC's experience with projects such as the one
proposed. Mr. Narloch distributed written testimony (Attachment D). Regarding the Fiscal Note,
Mr. Narloch said that their experience suggests that private developers, Website programmers,
should be able to do this for well under $1 million. That number seems high considering what

. was paid for their Website and what other states have.

There were no questions.
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Laura Glatt, University System, spoke in opposition to HB 1377. Ms. Glatt had indicated that
the University System has several of the same issues OMB has, mainly dealing with privacy
laws. She asked that if an estimate was requested from ITD that the University System would
be included. Ms. Glatt said that some of the data being requested is currently not collected and
there is no place in the PeopleSoft system to store the data so there would be an added cost if
the existing financial system was modified. She said that the information OMB was going to
release in March does not include any Higher Ed data and she is not aware that the University
System is working on anything of a similar nature.

Chm. Svedjan recapped the main topics/questions: If we do something like this, where do we
start? I've heard that we could get better cost estimates in a coupie of weeks. How could this
be tied into what OMB is doing effective March? Chm. Svedjan closed the hearing and did not
ask for final action today. Chm. Svedjan asked the sponsor to work with IT to get better costs
estimates and address some of the questions posed, confidentiality issues, etc.

Rep. Kempenich: | suggest the committee go to the Kanview Website and see what it’s like.

Chm. Svedjan closed the hearing on HB 1377.
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Minutes:

Chm. Svedjan called the Committee to order and took up HB 1377 the Establishment of a
Searchable Data Base of the State Expenditures. This is Rep. Thoreson's bill.
Rep. Thoreson introduced a University of Mary student who is shadowing him for the day.

Rep. Thoreson distributed amendment .0101 (Attachment A) and Attachment B. At the

‘beginning the amount was $1M to begin this type of procedure. Since then you have received

a revised Fiscal Note, dated Fébruary 4 from Pam Sharp, OMB Director. The number put on
this Fiscal Note by ITD is $489,860. You also have the handout, see attachment A, which
shows what other states have done and the costs. There is an organization that is called OMB
Watch which has developed software to be given free to states if interested. Also,
amendments 80732.0101moved to adopt.

Rep. Skarphol seconded the motion.

Rep. Thoreson: Explaining the changes made by this amendment. This would put the name

and city rather than the name and street address. Lines 16-17 address performance outcomes

~ and removes them. Section 2, line 21 is an inclusion of language that the director of the

budget may not include information in the data base any information that is confidential under

state or federal law.
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Chairman Svedjan: Called for a voice vote to adopt Amendment .0101. Motion carries and
the bill is amended.
Rep. Thoreson: Move Do Pass to HB 1377 as amended.

Rep. Dosch: Second.

Chairman Svedjan: Calling for discussion. This bill has no appropriation in it, but the fiscal

note is $4. Calling for discussion. This bill has no appropriation in it, but the fiscal note is

$489,860. What is the expectation of the funding of this project should we approve it.

- Rep. Thoreson: | had discussed putting in a section, in the bill, that would put a funding

source in there. If the Committee would wish to add something for that. | believe we will do it
for much less than that.

Chm. Svedjan: If left as is, it would become the responsibility of OMB and they wouid have to
find money if we don't appropriate it. Do you know what the prospect is for coordinating with
what OMB is beginning to do, finding something on line?

Tammy Dolan, OMB Analyst: That is accurate. We have one report that is statewide, but not
to the level that this is. They are working towards this.

Rep. Thoreson: | feel this is important to do this with the detail. Other states are doing this.
Rep. Glassheim: Does this require the listing of every check that is written in state
government? Each of our travel amounts? Hotel amounts? What is the level we are asking for?
Rep. Thoreson: it would require that expenditures by state government be listed there. |
would not have a problem with that. We are responsibie to the taxpayers. | did not address
amendments to put in spending levels.

Rep. Wald: Was there any mention of additional funds?
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Rep. Delzer: We did the detail on OMB yesterday. | think we should move it forward without
. any money to see what they come up with in March. If we need more money we could take it

up in Conference Committee.

Chairman Svedjan: Take a Roli Call Vote:

Yes 11 No 12 Absent 2, Motion Fails.

Rep. Berg: Couid we hold this because OMB is making some progress in this area and we

haven't acted on their bill.

Rep. Delzer: For the Committee's information, OMB did not request more money in the
budget.
Rep. Hawken: This is not a bad idea. But if OMB is doing this. If it's going to cost more money

and we are already trying to do something like it, it would be one of the things we could pay

for. Move Do Not Pass as amended.

i

(. Rep. Ekstrom: Second.

Rep. Thoreson: | appreciate that OMB is working on this. It's important to the taxpayer that we
will show them that. This has had a great use in other states. I resist the Do Not Pass motion.

Chairman Svedjan: Call for a Roll Call Vote on HB 1377 as amended.

Yes 12 No 12 Absent 1, Motion Fails.

Chairman Skarphol: We could go through the exercise of a DO Pass, if the Committee
wishes, or the exercise of “without recommendation” . | move a Do Pass as Amended.

Rep. Pollert. Second.

Rep. Kerzman: 1 think we are reinventing the wheet, but if OMB is doing this, it wouldn't take
them long to get us the information we need. [ am a little bit concerned about privacy. Do we
expose the Chanceilor’s income? Private industry is different. It is going to cost much more

( .money; | would like to use money for different purposes.
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Rep. Glassheim: This means a listing of everybody’s individual salary every month.

Chairman Svedjan: Caliing for discussion and hearing none a Roll Call Vote is taken on HB

1377 as amended.

Yes 15 No 9 Absent 1, Motion Carries. Carrier: Rep. Skarphol.



FISCAL NOTE

Requested by Legislative Council
04/06/2009

Amendment to: Engrossed
HB 1377

1A. State fiscal effect: /identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to
funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium
General |Other Funds| General |OtherFunds| General |OtherFunds
Fund Fund Fund
Revenues 5 $0 30 $0 $0 $0
Expenditures $0 $0 30 $0 $0 $0/
Appropriations $0 30 $0 30 $0 $0

18. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political subdivision.

2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium
Schooli School School
Counties Cities Districts | Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts
300 $0) $0f $0) $0 $0 30 30 $0

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the
provisions having fiscal impact {limited to 300 characters).

Engrossed House Bill No. 1377 with Senate amendments provides for a Legislative Council study of the
establishment of a searchable database of state expenditures.

B. Fiscal impact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which
have fiscal impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

et
There is no fiscal impact relating to this bill.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and
fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line
itemn, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a
confinuing appropriation.

Name: Allen H. Knudson Agency: Legislative Council
Phone Number: 328-2916 Date Prepared: (4/06/2009




REVISION

Bill/Resolution No.:

HB 1377

FISCAL NOTE

Requested by Legislative Council

02/04/2009

1A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to

funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium
General |Other Funds| General |OtherFunds| General |Other Funds
Fund Fund Fund
Revenues 30 $0 $0) $0 $0 $0
Expenditures 50 $0 $489,860 $0 $90,120 $0
Appropriations 30 30 $489,860) 0 $90,120 $0)

1B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect:

Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political subdivision.

2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium
School School School
Counties Cities Districts | Counties Cities Districts | Counties Cities Districts
$0 $0 £0 $0 $0 30 30 30 30

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

The one time cost is $399,740 and ongoing maintenance is $90,120 per biennium.

B. Fiscal impact sections:
have fiscal impact, Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and
fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which

B. Expenditures: Expfain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a

continuing appropriation.

Name:

Pam Sharp

Agency:

OMB

Phone Number;

328-4606

Date Prepared:

02/04/2008
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FISCAL NOTE

Requested by Legislative Council
01/13/2009

1A, State fiscal effect: [dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to

funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current faw.

2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium
General |Other Funds| General |OtherFunds| General |Other Funds
Fund Fund Fund
Revenues $0 $0 50 $O! 0 $0
Expenditures $0 $0 $1,000,000 $0 $500,000 $0
Appropriations $0 $0 $1,000,000 $0 $500,000) $0

1B. _County, city, and school district fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political subdivision.

2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium
School School School
Counties Cities Districts | Counties Cities Districts | Counties Cities Districts
30 30 50 $0 5 $0 $0 - $0) $0

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the
provisions having fiscal impact {limited to 300 characters).

Very difficult to estimate cost without ITD estimate, but project most likely could not be done for less than $1,000,000.

B. Fiscal impact sections:

have fiscal impact. Include any assumptions and comments refevant o the analysis.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 14, please:
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue fype and
fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or refates to a

continuing appropriation.

Name:

Pam Sharp

Agency:

OMB

Phone Number:

328-46086

Date Prepared:

01/16/2008




90732.0101 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Representative Thoreson
January 30, 2009

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1377

Page 1, line 11, replace "address" with "city" and replace "recipients" with "recipient"
Page 1, remove lines 16 and 17
Page 1, line 18, replace ".." with "Q."

Page 1, line 20, replace ".." with "h."

Page 1, line 21, after "2." insert "The director of the budget may not include in the database any
information that is confidential under state or federal law.

1“

Page 2, line 1, replace "3." with "4."

Page 2, line 5, replace "4." with "5."

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1 90732.0101
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Rolil Call Vote #:

2009 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO.

Full House Appropriations Committee

[] Check here for Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number fﬂ 732, 4/6 /7

Action Taken W W\j&zyzjﬂf ' L0/ ﬁ(/

L4
Motion Made By m Seconded By ‘MJ
{

Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No

Chairman Svedjan

Vice Chairman Kempenich

Rep. Skarphol Rep. Kroeber
Rep. Wald Rep. Onstad
Rep. Hawken Rep. Williams
Rep. Klein
Rep. Martinson
Rep. Delzer Rep. Glassheim
Rep. Thoreson Rep. Kaldor
Rep. Berg Rep. Meyer
Rep. Dosch
Rep. Pollert Rep. Ekstrom
Rep. Bellew Rep. Kerzman
Rep. Kreidt Rep. Metcalf
Rep. Nelson
Rep. Wieland

Total (Yes) No

Absent

Floor Assignment

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:

Viser Vit —oarces
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Roll Call Vote #:

Date: _&/5'7 (2
T

BILL/RESOLUTION NO.

Full House Appropriations Committee

[L] Check here for Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number

Mo 7

Action Taken

P73, £/0 7

Seconded By

/74_/

Motion Made By %P%/
Id

Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No

Chairman Svedjan NV
Vice Chairman Kempenich N4
Rep. Skarphol 4. /| Rep. Kroeber L
Rep. Waid v _| Rep. Onstad
Rep. Hawken v _| Rep. Williams X
Rep. Klein Ve
Rep. Martinson NV

~ ~
Rep. Delzer v Rep. Glassheim J%
Rep. Thoreson V4 Rep. Kaldor v
Rep. Berg e Rep. Meyer W1
Rep. Dosch v

P
Rep. Pollert v’ Rep. Ekstrom
Rep. Bellew e’ Rep. Kerzman
Rep. Kreidt V' _| Rep. Metcalf i
Rep. Nelson L
Rep. Wieland

Total (Yes) / / No / A —

Absent ,72

Floor Assignment

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:




2009 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. _/ 7 7 /

Full House Appropriations Committee

[[] Check here for Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number

Mo At fomo 4o fomproter!

Action Taken

Date:

Roll Cali Vote #:

o

GO 7S f/o/

Motion Made By % 4 i 'éz - Seconded By

Representatives Yes { No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Svedjan v, A
Vice Chairman Kempenich v
ya ]
Rep. Skarphol A_ v | Rep. Kroeber Ny
Rep. Wald W Rep. Onstad vl
Rep. Hawken V4 Rep. Williams v’
Rep. Klein iy )% -
Rep. Martinson N
s ]

Rep. Delzer v~ | Rep. Glassheim v
Rep. Thoreson v | Rep. Kaldor Y4
Rep. Berg v L Rep. Meyer Ny
Rep. Dosch v
Rep. Pollert W : Rep. Ekstrom e
Rep. Beliew v | Rep. Kerzman v
Rep. Kreidt /| Rep. Metcalf .
Rep. Nelson / P
Rep. Wieland N

Total (Yes) / 2— No / pl

Absent /

Floor Assignment ?

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent;
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Roll Call Vote #:

2009 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO.
Full House Appropriations Committee
[] Check here for Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number Gp 732, pro/

Action Taken ‘Z /Z4o A /,'Mt(ﬂé_a/

L

Motion Made By éé ot ot SecondedBy A // A

Representatives Yes, | No Representatives Yes

Chairman Svedjan v/
Vice Chairman Kempenich v
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: HR-23-2078

February 8, 2009 3:27 p.m. Carrler: Skarphol
Insert LC: 90732.0101 Title: .0200

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
HB 1377: Appropriations  Committee  (Rep. Svedjan, Chairman) recommends
AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS
(15 YEAS, 9 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1377 was placed on the
Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 11, replace "address" with "city" and replace "recipients" with "recipient"

Page 1, remove lines 16 and 17
Page 1, line 18, replace "i." with "g."
Page 1, line 20, replace "j." with "h."

Page 1, line 21, after "2.” insert "The director of the budget may not include in the database
any information that is confidential under state or federal law.

ill
Page 2, line 1, replace "3." with "4."
Page 2, line 5, replace "4." with "5."

Renumber accordingly

(2) DESK, (3} COMM Page No. 1 HR-23-2078
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Minutes:

Chairman Holmberg called the committee back to order on HB 1377 in regards to a BILL for
an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-44.1 of the NDCC, relating to the
establishment of a searchable database of state expenditures.

Representative Blair Thoreson, District 44, Fargo, ND. Testified in favor of HB 1377 and
provided written testimony # 1 in support of the bill. The goal of this bill is to place all state
expenditures on an easily searchable website. (06.04) | would like to report Representative
Schneider would have liked to be here but had other responsibilities today.

Senator Seymour: Who would keep up the records? He was told OMB would be responsible
for that.

Senator Robinson: Have you heard an outcry from people in your district to have this. My
district feels the government is doing a good job. Why do we need to take this next step?
Rep Thoreson: | have heard that yes the public would like this. We do a good job here,
people would like to find out what we are doing. We could verify it through this process.
Kansas wondered if it would be useful and have found it is very useful. (08.40)

Chairman Holmberg: Would you agree with the idea as technology has changed there is
more access to what is public access? | can go now on the Grand Forks County website and

find any information | would want to find.




 _
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Rep. Thoreson: | will agree with you. For example a case in Supreme Court, in a matter of

seconds, I was able to pulf this up. (10.32)

Pam Sharp, Director of Office of Management and Budget (OMB): We are very much for
transparency in government. Our staff has put together a website that will produce statewide
accounting reports for each agency. We also have on line our monthly news letter and
documents. The website we will be putting on line about the end of March is not a searchable
database. We don’t have those capabilities. We would be very happy to work on this but we
need the funding for it. We asked ITD to put together that cost. We absolutely cannot do it with
funding. That fiscal note that was referred to includes the costs for all the state transactions,
Higher Ed transactions and salary transactions as well. One of the issues about a searchable
data base and putting information out there on the web is confidential information that cannot
be put out there. With HIPPA requirements all the information has to be scrubbed and that
takes time and money as well. Our staff talked to Missouri they found out what it costs. If you
would like, you might want to talk to ITD regarding that fiscal note. | know Representative
Thoreson stated there is free software out there, and | think there probably is, but it depends
on what kind of accounting structure and technology we have already on hand. That
determines what kind of software you can use so | don’t know what kind of free software that is
out there. A couple of things about the bill | just need to address, the first page just assuming
we are provided the funding for a searchable database | do need to say that we can't meet the
2010 deadline. The same people involved on a project that is in progress now would be the
ones to work on this project and they will be involved with that project until the fall. We could
not meet this deadline. Also In the bill, # G in the bill asking for a report or audit, we cannot do,
even if we had the funding. The information that will be on our website right now would take

care of ABCD and F listed in the bill. G is not available right now. Another thing that you
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would want to consider is that this requires us keep this in place for 10 years,and as the years
go the cost would go up. The bottom line we would be happy to go forward with this
searchable database but we do need the funding for it. And the House already took out the
funding. (16.06)

V. Chair Grindberg: This might be an interesting project to kind of get a comparison on what
state quotes are versus private sector. What if we set this up in a RP that went out to some
private vendors to bid their services?

Pam Sharp: We do that all the time. He asked if that was done in this case and the answer
was no, there was not time to do that.

Chairman Holmberg: Was ITD aware when they looked at the cost that you were already
putting into a place a program that already covers this?

Pam Sharp: Yes, they are aware of that.

Senator Warner: Could you give me some costs (could not understand the audio) (17.62)
Pam Sharp: Actually yes because this could be made available to all the public. Right now
the reports that we have go to the agencies. They are not made public so there would be
information in that report that certainly the agencies can have but they might not ever be used
for the public. So there would be a lot of scrubbing of those records.

Senator Robinson: If we go down this road and provide this information | think we all are in
transparency in government it seems to me that in many cases the information would have to
explained. There would have to be an explanation if it is going to be of value to those using this
database material to direct them to further resources for their explanation, for their analysis.
Pam Sharp: | do agree there would have to be some kind of mechanism because | have gone
out to a couple of other states and what you get is what you ask for, down to one transaction in

isolation.
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Senator Krauter Do you mean like every check, every contract, every vendor that receives
money, is the intent here not only general fund, federal dollars, special funds, university
system. | am just trying to make sure we understand what we are asking for here.(20.48)

Rep Berg: Yes this would cover a broad range.

Randall Thursby, CIO for the North Dakota University System (NDUS) testified in
opposition of HB 1377 and provided written testimony # 2. The NDUS stands in opposition to
the bill as written but does not oppose the idea or the goal of the bill as we perceive it. Our
opposition is based on the following: (see testimony) (23.08)

Mary Kay Kelsch, Assistant to Attorney General. My primary portfolio is open records and
meetings. | am here to offer an amendment written testimony #3. Basically right now as it has
been testified to, confidential information would be protected and this amendment would add
the word “exempt” and the difference, there are 3 classes of records. There are open records,
and then there are confidential records and the real puzzler is all the exempt records. (24.16)
And exempt records is left to the discretion of the entity, the agency, the city, the department
whether or not they wish to release information, it is up to their discretion. So there may be
time elements involved. For example if a case is in litigation at the state level, while something
is in litigation or in the State’s Attorney's Office it is protected as an exempt record. So until
litigation is over they can respond no. Once litigation is over that record may be released.
There are all sorts of exempt records out there within probably every agency so there is a lot of
concern about whether or not and really it shouldn’t be up to OMB to decide if that should be
on the database. It should be the source agency that will have to let OMB know whether or not
this is a record that can be put out on the database.

Chairman Holmberg closed the hearing on 1377.
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Minutes:

Chairman Holmberg opened discussion on HB 1377 which related to searchable data base.

Chairman Holmberg: We asked the Council for your consideration to prepare an amendment

handed out amendment .0201.

V. Chair Grindberg moved Do Pass.

Senator Wardner seconded.

V. Chair Grindberg moved Do Pass.
V. Chair Bowman seconded.
A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 13 Nay: 0 Absent: 1

Senator Holmberg will carry the bill.



90732.0201 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. gze2 Senator Holmberg
April 2, 2009

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1377

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a
legislative council study regarding the establishment of a searchable database of state
expenditures.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY. During the 2009-10 interim,
the legislative council shall consider studying the establishment of a searchable
database of state expenditures. The study must include an analysis of the information
to be reported in the database and the current information available on state agencies'
websites. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations,
together with any legislation required to impiement the recommendations, to the
sixty-second legislative assembly.”

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1 90732.0201
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (41 0) Module No: SR-56-6070
April 3, 2009 8:29 a.m. Carrier: Holmberg
Insert LC: 90732.0201 Title: .0300

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
HB 1377, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends
DO PASS (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1377
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a
legisiative council study regarding the establishment of a searchable database of state
expenditures.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY. During the 2009-10 interim,
the legislative council shall consider studying the establishment of a searchable
database of state expenditures. The study must include an analysis of the information
to be reported in the database and the current information available on state agencies'
websites. The legislative council shail report its findings and recommendations,
together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the
sixty-second legislative assembly."

Renumber accordingly

{2) DESK, (3) COMM Page No. 1 SR-56-6070
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Minutes:

Rep. Thoreson called the Conference Committee on HB1377 to order. Clerk, Holly Sand,
called the roll and all Conferees were present.

Rep. Thoreson asked the Senators for a background on the changes they made to the bill.
Sen. Fischer deferred to Senator Holmberg.

. Sen. Holmberg explained that there was little or no support for the hill with the Fiscal Note that
was attached to it. Senate Appropriations had testimony from OMB of a negative nature. The
Committee felt the bill had merit but thought they needed to get rid of the Fiscal Note.

Rep. Thoreson spoke as the prime sponsor of the bill and recalled the testimony from OMB
and Higher Ed. He explained that the House did express support and had discussion on the
Fiscal Note. At the time that the bill was passed there was no information on the ARRA
stimulus money. Since the House Appropriations hearing, this information has been added to
the Commerce Budget, and Rep. Thoreson has worked with Legislative Council and taken
$400,000 from the stimulus dollars to fund the amount. The fiscal note was $489,000. They
came up with a one-time cost just under $400,000. The ongoing maintenance of $90,000 is not

dealt with in the stimulus dollars. Rep. Thoreson reiterated his desire to move forward with this

. project.
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Sen. Holmberg referred to a document he received that shows the anticipated funds and
current appropriations of stimulus dollars as of April 17. There is a reference to this project
under the Governor’s budget, “Office of Management and Budget — Database of state
expenditures (SB 2018).” Sen. Holmberg indicated that he was surprised to find it there since
he was looking for it under Department of Commerce.

Roxanne Woeste, Legislative Council said that it is listed under Governor because the
$400,000 is being used from the Governor's discretionary funds of the $19 million. Legislative
Council is tracking how much of the $19 million has been appropriated to date.

Rep. Skarphol asked Ms. Woeste if what she was saying was that the appropriation to pay the
cost that's in the Commerce Budget is taken from the discretionary monies that will be handled
by the Governor’s office and Ms. Woeste indicated that his restatement was correct. In
response to another question by Rep. Skarphol, Ms. Woeste indicated that there is no General
Fund appropriation at this time.

Rep. Skarphol asked the Senators what their reactions are to having this in the Commerce
Budget.

Sen. Robinson explained that Sen. Holmberg expressed the feeling of the majority of the
Senators on the Appropriations Committee. We didn't have much support for the concept. The
more questions we asked, the more questions we had. The concept might have some appeal
which is why we elected the study. Putting the information out there is one thing. Explaining
that information to the general public is another. I'm a little uncomfortable using stimulus
money. | think if this project is that important it should stand on its own.

Rep. Thoreson explained that part of his reasoning for the stimulus money concept was that
the federal government is supporting transparency and a directive from the federal government

requesting that there be complete transparency in the way stimulus funds are spent. Since the
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. stimulus dollars will be flowing through other budgets keeping that money transparent would
accomplish the goal. Rep. Thoreson expressed that while studying this has merit, this concept
of a searchable database has taken root in other states and the federal government. He
believes North Dakotans would find similar value to this project.

Sen. Robinson indicated that our system is transparent today and that OMB and our agencies
go above and beyond to provide and explain information. He is concerned about the potential
workload and whether the money appropriated will be sufficient. That is part of the reason for
the consensus for a study in addition to the Senate Appropriations Committee not feeling it
was the right time to do it.

Rep. Kaldor commented that what persuaded him that this was a good thing to do was that
the information is already being accumulated in a database and the question really is whether

. or not to invest the money to make it available to the public. Rep. Kaldor said that the issue of
explanations could probably be studied, but what is needed is just making the database Web
enabled.

Sen. Holmberg commented that if the bill is going to be passed as it was sent to the Senate
that the money should be in HB 1377. He said that the advantage of doing that is that the
Commerce budget likely will not be settled this week and this will give a good read on where
this bill might go. If the Conference Committee decides to leave the money coming from the
discretionary fund the Senate will likely be a tough sell. Then the Conference Committee on
SB 2018 would be more than willing to remove the funding from that.

Sen. Robinson expressed that both sides have priorities and with all the expenditures the

Senate had to deal with, this was not a priority and there were a number of questions that still

. needed to be asked. He felt that North Dakota does a good job with transparency and could
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. probably do a better job, but that the Senate did not feel like spending $400,000 on this project
was a priority.

Rep. Skarphol asked Lori Laschkewitsch (OMB) which of the items (a through h) listed on the

First Engrossment of HB 1377 (.0200) are currently available based on the database that is in

place today. Ms. Laschkewitsch reviewed Section 1, subsection 1 of the First Engrossment of

HB 1377. Parts a, b, c, d, e, i and j would be available. Part f, a descriptive purpose for the
expenditure, might be questionable. Ms. Laschkewitsch also explained that in order to pull any
of this information out the business intelligence piece of the data warehouse needs to be in
place which they are hoping would be completed by the next biennium. That's the vehicle that
is necessary to pull the reports out of PeopleSoft.
Rep. Skarphol asked Ms. Laschkewitsch if what she was saying was that this might be less
. possible now than in the future and she responded that he was correct because the data
warehouse is not in place.
Rep. Thoreson explained that he had spoken with Pam Sharp, OMB Director on that issue
previously. The original version of the bill, .0100, items g and h were taken out and at that time
item f (descriptive purposes) on the engrossed bill was still guestionable. Rep. Thoreson said
that the other items were discussed with Ms. Sharp but that he did not get the indication that
the time frame would be that long. He will double-check on that.
Rep. Skarphol suggested for purposes of discussion that the bill say that during the interim
OMB will ensure that they put in place the capability to do what the bill indicates and have it
available for the next session to discuss rather than procrastinate on trying to get the desired
results. The direction could be that OMB has to design their business intelligence system in

. such a fashion that it will be capable of providing this information.
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Rep. Thoreson said that there may be some merit to doing that but that he would prefer this
going forward in a more expedient fashion.

Sen. Holmberg indicated that Rep. Skarphol's suggestion was intriguing because in essence
that would forego the study and at the same time it would be implemented and the next
session the capability would be there.

Rep. Skarphol added that there may be a cost associated but it might give them the
information they are looking for down the road.

Rep. Thoreson said that he would have to ponder that idea. It would be his intention to get
this going sooner rather than later.

Rep. Thoreson adjourned the Conference Committee on HB 1377.
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Minutes:

Chm. Thoreson called the Conference Committee on HB 1377 to order and asked the clerk to
note that all Conferees were present.

Chm. Thoreson distributed “Mercatus on Policy: The Cost of State Online Spending-
Transparency Initiatives” document for the Committees’ information. Chm. Thoreson explained
that it gives background on what states have done and what the actual costs were versus the
estimates. In some states, the Governors issued an Executive Order creating the Websites so
there was never a study done on the costs. (Attachment A).

Chm. Thoreson reviewed that HB 1377 still contains study language and also in the
Commerce Bill there is the actual language that is in HB 1377 along with an appropriation of
$400,000. He explained that the Conference Committee needs to come to a resolution as to
where this project will go.

Rep. Skarphol explained that he had spoken with some of the people who would have to
implement this project and he believes that this project should be left in the Commerce Budget
in a changed form because some of the items in the bill may not be achievable. He said that
he believes OMB is willing to do parts of this project, not all of it, because of their capability.
The OMB does not have a business intelligence system currently but it is in the works.

Although PeopleSoft provides a database, it does not have the capability to do a search and
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query like a business intelligence system. As a result, certain aspects of this bill are not
possible at this time. The timeline in the bill, therefore, is probably not achievable.

Rep. Skarphol suggested that a few changes be made and the project be kept in the
Commerce Budget and that the language on Engrossed HB 1377, page 1, line 7 should not
say “By January 1, 2010” but indicate "By the end of the biennium,” or other proper language
since he believes the date of January 1, 2010 is not achievable. Rep. Skarphol also suggested
that the language require that Sections a, ¢, d, and e be completed by the time indicated and
upon completion of the business intelligence system that Section b become available. Rep.
Skarphol believes that part of the reason for the high Fiscal Note is the cost associated with
keeping confidential information confidential. He said that if the legislature waits until the
business intelligence system is in place, the costs will be more comparable to the $40,000 and

could be absorbed within the agency’s budget. (5:00)

Rep. Skarphol moved that this project be moved to the Commerce Budget with the

caveats explained above. Rep. Kaldor seconded the motion.

Sen. Holmberg applauded Rep. Skarphol's work on this bill. Sen. Holmberg commented that

this is in the Commerce Budget until the House says it's not. He said that he does not have a

problem with going with what is in place and waiting for the business Intelligence system to get
up and running to do the remainder of the items. He did say, however, that the process is
awkward since there are only a few things to recommend to the floor. He expressed that he is
not sure if that will be the end motion since they have to report this to the floor in some
manner. Sen. Holmberg thought it would be good to ask Roxanne (Woeste) of Legislative

Council to expand.
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Chm. Thoreson said that he had the same thought since this is still a separate bill. He
explained that they have to decide what to do with HB 1377 and as long as they are going to
keep it in SB 2018 (Commerce Budget) then they we would have to make some motion. It
would make little sense to keep this as a study while they are doing it somewhere else.

Rep. Skarphol suggested that they make this into a Hog House with the changes that he
referred to so that HB 1377 would survive and change what's in SB 2018 to reflect what has
been discussed. Rep. Skarphol would like to have a vote on the changes that are being
suggested and if it is approved in both chambers then the section in SB 2018 would be
changed to reflect this bill.

Sen. Holmberg expressed that if it passed both houses there would be no need. He said that
the House would have to pass it first and the Senate has to pass SB 2018 first. He suggested
that they might want to have the Conference Committee decide what HB 1377 should look like,
report it out and the House sit on it in the House until the Senate has completed SB 2018. He
said then the easy thing to do would be to have HB 1377 on the floor of the House as soon as
the Senate passed SB 2018 then there would be no reason to have HB 1377. The House
could explain what the Conference Committee did and then kill HB 1377.

Rep. Skarphol wants to ensure that what's in SB 2018 is reflective of what the Conference
Committee thinks is reasonable. If SB 2018 is not changed then the legislature will have what
is in it which is not reasonable. Rep. Skarphol asked Roxanne to explain how to make it work.
Roxanne Woeste, Legislative Council suggested that the Conference Committee wants
specific language that they amend HB 1377 to reflect that language and remove it from SB
2018. She explained that she would be afraid that if this issue is in both bills then it will hold up
both bills and a lot of time will be spent making sure that instead of six people agreeing on the

language perhaps up to twelve people will have to agree on the language.
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Rep. Skarphol said that that (taking the language out of SB 2018) is exactly what he doesn't
want to do. Based on Rep. Skarphol's comment, Ms. Woeste suggested that the Conference
Committee amend HB 1377 to look however the Conference Committee agrees and send the
bill to the floor and then removing it from SB 2018.

Rep. Skarphol expressed again that he does not want to remove the language from SB 2018
because it makes the concept more vulnerable. He would rather change it in SB 2018 so that
SB 2018 reflects what is being discussed on HB 1377.

Chm. Thoreson agreed with Rep. Skarphol.

Rep. Kaldor believes that since those amendments would have to be carried forward into the
Commerce Budget and since he, Sen. Holmberg, Sen. Robinson and Rep. Thoreson are all on
that Conference Committee he would have no problem carrying the amendment forward in that
committee. He thinks that the Conference Committee on HB 1377 should decide how the
amendments would work on HB 1377 so it can go out in the form that is desired and help
ensure that it is done the want they want it.

Sen. Holmberg suggested having the amendments drafted and presented to the Conference
Committee on HB 1377.

Chm. Thoreson asked Ms. Woeste to draft the amendments for HB 1377 drafted and keep
the language in SB 2018 for the time being.

Rep. Skarphol reviewed the amendments at the request of Ms. Woeste. The language would
include: “By the end of the biennium,” “Sections a, ¢, d and e be completed by the end of the
biennium” and “Upon completion of business intelligence system, section b be available.” Rep.
Skarphol said that sections f and g are gone.

Rep. Skarphol continued by saying that he does not see a problem with section h and that he

does not think the Department would have a problem with section h.
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Chm. Thoreson followed up by saying that there are issues with achieving items f and g at
this time and that they can be revisited in the future. He agrees that item h could encompass
those other items should that information become available and the Director should be able to
include it.

Rep. Skarphol commented that it also gives the Director more flexibility to put in what she
deems appropriate in conjunction with what is being requested.

Sen. Robinson asked what the intention would be once the language is drafted.

Chm. Thoreson said that his intention is to vote on the motion to adopt the amendment then
come back together as a Conference Committee to review the amendment.

Rep. Holmberg said that it strengthens the hand on SB 2018 when they know that the

Conference Committee has voted on it.

The motion to amend HB 1377 carried by a roll call vote of 6 yeas, 0 nays and 0 absent

and not voting. The amendment was adopted.

Rep. Skarphol asked that Legislative Council be prepared at the next meeting of the

Conference Committee to let the conferees know how to proceed so the desired result is
achieved.

Chm. Thoreson recessed the committee until the call of the chair.
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Chm. Thoreson called the Conference Committee to order. All conferees were present and
included Representatives Thoreson, Skarphol and Kaldor and Senators Fischer, Holmberg and
Robinson.

Amendment .0202 (Attachment A) was distributed.

Chm. Thoreson said that he had reviewed the amendment and that it appeared to do what

they had discussed at the last meeting.

Rep. Skarphol moved to adopt amendment .0202. Rep. Holmberg seconded the motion.

Chm. Thoreson said that based on their previous discussions, they would try to make SB
2018 match HB 1377. The appropriation for the $400,000 is in SB 2018. He was not sure if the
appropriation needed to be in HB 1377 also and asked Legislative Counci for an opinion.
Roxanne Woeste, Legislative Council expressed that she did not believe it would be a good
idea to have the appropriation in two places since it would be doubling up the appropriation.
It's not like sections of code which can coexist.

Sen. Holmberg said that he understood that the amount of money that would be necessary to

make this bill effective changed from the estimated $400,000 that was in the budget originally.
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He asked if OMB has another number that is more closely related to what wiil be spent rather
than the $400,000 which would seem to be lower since things have been taken out.

Chm. Thoreson explained that he and Rep. Skarphol met with OMB and they estimated that
the cost would remain somewhat the same because of the upfront items that needed to be
done.

Pam Sharp, Director, OMB approached the podium to address the costs associated with this
project. She said OMB still believes they need the full $400,000. Some things were removed,
but those things they knew they would not be able to do so they were not considered in the
initial Fiscal Note. Ms. Sharp explained that there are Licensing fees that will cost about
$140,000 no matter what and most of the money will be spent on analysis and cleansing the
data so that nothing gets out that should not be released. The cleansing process is a manual
process.

Chm. Thoreson said that he had questioned the $400,000 but after visiting with OMB he
discovered some of the other costs such as the licensing fee.

Rep. Kaldor asked for a clarification from Ms. Sharp on “cleansing the data.”

Ms. Sharp explained that there are many things that cannot be put out such as information
about BC| agents, HIPAA information, etc.

Chm. Thoreson added that the amendment adds the words “or exempt” and there is an issue

about “exempt” information. The Attorney General's office brought that forward. Rep. Thoreson

expressed that his concern has always been that any agency could stamp something “exempt

and that would keep it out of the process but he feels comfortable that that will not happen.

Rep. Skarphol restated his motion that the Senate Recede from the Senate amendments

as printed on page 177 of the House Journal and page 1012 of the Senate Journal and
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that Engrossed House Bill No. 1377 be amended as follows: (Amendment .0202). Sen.
Holmberg seconded the motion. The motion carried by a Roll Call vote of 6 yeas, 0 nays

and 0 absent and not voting.

Chm. Thoreson asked Ms. Woeste to prepare amendments for SB 2018 as well. The
amendment will be rolled into the other amendments for SB 2018. A separate document will
not be created unless requested by the Chairman of that Committee.

Chm. Thoreson adjourned the Conference Committee on HB 1377.



80732.0202 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for V

Title.0400 Conference Committee
April 27, 2009

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1377

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1177 of the House Journal
and page 1012 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1377 be amended as
follows:

Page 1, line 7, replace "January 1, 2010" with "June 30, 2011"

Page 1, remove line 11

Page 1, line 12, replace "c." with "b."

Page 1, line 13, replace "d." with "¢."

Page 1, line 14, replace "e."” with "d."

Page 1, remove lines 15 through 17

Page 1, line 18, replace "h." with "e."

Page 1, line 18, after "2," insert "The director of the budget shall include the name and city of
the recipient of each expenditure in the budget database website after the director has
completed implementation of a business intelligence component to the state's financial

reporing system.

3."

Page 1, line 20, after "confidential” insert "or exempt”

Page 1, line 21, replace "3." with "4."
Page 2, line 1, replace "4." with "5."

Page 2, line 5, replace "5." with "8."

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1 890732.0202
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REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE {420) Module No: SR-74-8696
Aprii 29, 2009 4:53 p.m.
Insert LC: 90732.0202

HB 1377, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Fischer, Hoimberg, Robinson
and Reps. Thoreson, Skarphol, Kaldor) recommends that the SENATE RECEDE from
the Senate amendments on HJ page 1177, adopt amendments as follows, and place
HB 1377 on the Seventh order:

. REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1177 of the House Journal
and page 1012 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1377 be amended as
follows:

Page 1, line 7, replace "January 1, 2010" with "June 30, 2011"

Page 1, remove line 11

Page 1, line 12, repiace "c." with "b."

Page 1, line 13, replace "d." with "¢."

Page 1, line 14, replace "e." with "d."

Page 1, remove lines 15 through 17

Page 1, line 18, replace "h." with "e."

Page 1, line 19, after "2." insert "The director of the budget shall include the name and city of

the recipient of each expenditure in the budget database website after the director has
. completed implementation of a business intelligence component to the state's financial

reporting system.

Page 1, line 20, after "confidential” insert "or exempt"
Page 1, line 21, replace "3." with "4."

Page 2, line 1, replace "4." with "5."

Page 2, line 5, replace "5." with "6."

Renumber accordingly

Engrossed HB 1377 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

{2} DESK, (2) COMM Page No. 1 SR.74-8696
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House Appropriations Committee
Rep. Ken Svedjan, Chair
Roughrider Room

Monday, January 19, 2009
Testimony in support of HB 1377 — Government Transparency Act
Mr. Chairman and members of the committee,

| am Representative Blair Thoreson, representing District 44 in Fargo. | testify today in
support of HB 1377, which will create a database of government expenditures, leading to

increased government transparency.

Thomas lefferson once said, “We might hope to see the finances of the Union as clear and
intelligible as a merchant’s books, so that every member of Congress and every man of any
mind in the Union should be able to comprehend them, to investigate abuses, and

consequently control them.” These words still ring true today.

My goal with this bill is a simple one: to place all state expenditures on an easily searchable
website. With passage of this bill, the citizens of North Dakota will be able to quickly and
easily research budget issues on their own in the comfort of their homes. They won't have to
take much time out of their busy days to do a lot of research. All budget information will be

at their fingertips.

In addition, by placing all expenditure data on a website, the state will show that it has
nothing to hide. By requesting that budget data be placed online, citizens aren’t accusing the
government of wrong-doing. They are giving the state the opportunity to show taxpayers
that power still does rest with the people and that the state wants citizens to be more

informed.



Opponents of placing budget data on the internet commonly give two reasons to justify their
position. They say that North Dakota already has good open records laws and that citizens
are already able to get budget information. They also say that the cost of building and
maintaining such a website would not be worth the price. I agree that our open records laws

are good, but this legislation will give citizens an increased level of openness.

As for the cost of building this database, most of the information is already available in one
form or another. The only cost will be to develop software which will extract it and place itin
one “clearinghouse”. This has been done in other states using off-the-shelf software
solutions, or in some cases, states are allowing free use of the software their IT developers
created. | believe that our Office of Management and Budget, along with the professionals at
ITD and/or private-sector software providers, will be able to build this website for a minimal

cost.

The state’s budget data should be easily searchable on a website because, let’s face it, it’s
the 21st century. Jefferson stated that the government’s books should be as accessible as a
merchant’s. Most, if not nearly all, businesses now do their finances on computers. if we are
to heed Jefferson’s words, then we should keep pace with what the private sector is doing
and deliver government transparency through a vehicle that citizens use and understand,

the internet.

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, government transparency through a
serchable database is now being done in at least 13 other states. Kansas, through it's

“Kanview” website (www.kansas.gov/kanview) was the first state to develop this window

into state government. Since then, Missouri {through an executive order), Nebraska,
Minnesota, and several others have followed suit. At the national level, the “Federal Funding
Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006” has created a database of expenditures by
federal government. Interestingly, two of the co-sponsors of this legislation have had their

names in the news quite a bit lately: Sen. John McCain, and President-elect Barack Obama.



,’_.

I believe, along as they did, that both parties can agree that we need to be accountable to

those who pay government's bills: the taxpayer.

Putting expenditure data on a website isn’t an indictment against government leaders; it
isn’t an attempt to poke anybody in the eyes; it isn’t an attempt to use information against
political opponents. It’s a common-sense idea that brings government into the 21st century
and will go a long way towards curing apathy, which, in the world of politics and

government, has become all too prevalent.

It has been noted that government transparency is "like an x-ray machine, allowing
taxpayers to look inside government and see how the money is being spent: every check
written, every contract let and every vendor receiving money.” It’s time to provide our
citizens with receipts for the purchases made on their behalf by government. Remember,
sunshine is the best disinfectant. I ask that the House Appropriations Committee give a DO

PASS recommendation to HB 1377.

Mr. Chairman, this concludes my testimony. | would be happy to answer any questions.
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NDPC Testimony to the North Dakota House of Representatives Appropriations Committee

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee,

I am Brett Narloch, Executive Director of the North Dakota Policy Council, a liberty-based think
tank in North Dakota. 1 testify today not to support or oppose any proposed legislation or to take
a stance on any issue; rather, | came here to talk about the NDPC’s experience with projects such
as the one proposed.

On December 20"‘, the NDPC, along with several other organizations, held the first Public Policy
Institute in Bismarck. There, elected leaders of every level of government stated their hope that
the public would become more engaged and more active in legislative affairs in the future. With
more information, citizens said, they would probably be more engaged in the legislative process.
Citizens will be more likely to take the initiative to learn more about what their government is
doing. But, like many of us, they do not have the time to search through pages of paper, the skills
to know exactly what they’re looking for, or the money to pay for the state’s time.

While a more informed citizenry is a good thing, there are arguments commonly cited against
website development like the project proposed here. Those arguments center on the idea that
North Dakota already has good open records laws and citizens are already able to get budget
information. It’s aiso said that the cost of building and maintaining such a website would not be
worth the price. Those are things that this committee must consider. Our experience, however,
suggests that those arguments may be overblown to a certain extent.

In April 2008, we launched Sunshine on Schools (www.sunshineonschools.org), an interactive
website that contains all vital K-12 school district budget data and displays it in an easily readable
fashion. When we started putting the plans together to build the website, we obviously
recognized that the most important component was the raw data, so we approached DPI to gather
it. While we found most of the data online, it was nearly impossible for us to comprehend. Many
times we weren’t able to tell which set of numbers we were looking at. It wasn’t until spending
many hours on the phone with people at DPI that we finally knew which documents we had to
cross-reference with other documents to make heads or tails of it. In other words, it was a mess.

The NDPC is nearing completion of another similar project, Sunshine on Cities. The concept is
the same as Sunshine on Schools, but obviously city data would be used instead. Collecting data
has also been a problem. We received all of the city audits that were on our list of cities that the
State Auditors Office had. The first thing we noticed is that many cities simply didn’t bother to
submit their audits. The fact is that many times collecting data is tough to do.

The point of these stories is to show that, while open records laws in North Dakota are good and
people working in government agencies are more than willing to help find the data you’re looking
for, it takes a long time to find, read, and comprehend much of what the state provides. That
deters people from asking for data and provides an incentive for those people to wonder why it’s
so confusing and consequently question what government is hiding. In other words, it creates
apathy... the type of apathy that elected leaders told us, back in December, they want to

PO Box 3007 — Bismarck, ND 58502
Phone: (701)223-8155
Email: info@policynd.org
www.policynd.org
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eliminate. We know that many people feel this way because they tell us these things when they
tell us about their experiences with Sunshine on Schools.

So 1 think any government transparency project must answer the following question: how can the
state most efficiently provide government data to citizens? Whether or not HB1377 provides the
answer is up to this committee.

So what will all of this cost? It is impossible for me to know whether or not any fiscal note
attached to this bill is accurate, but what I do know is what the NDPC paid for Sunshine on
Schools and what other states paid for similar websites. For instance, Governor Matt Blunt of
Missouri signed an executive order to create a similar website, and they built it with existing
funds. It didn’t cost anything extra.

The State of Kansas threw a similar project into an overhaul of their online financial system. It
didn’t cost them any extra money.

A non-profit group in New York, the Empire Center for New York State Policy, created a website
detailing state expenditures, and it cost them between $100,000 and $200,000. Most of their
resources, however, were spent collecting data, which, of course, wouldn’t be a problem for state
government considering they already have it.

The State of Texas built a similar website and it was found to have cost $400,000, but the agency
in charge of implementing it voluntarily decided to use existing funds instead.

Other websites like these have been built in Nebraska, Minnesota, and many other places.

While HB1377 would increase government transparency in state government, it leaves out local
governments, universities, and some other entities that spend tax dollars which should be held to
the same amount of scrutiny as state agencies.

The NDPC’s experience in this issue has shown that the citizens of North Dakota are craving
more information about what their government is doing. It’s up to you to determine the best way
to deliver on that request.

Mr. Chairman, please keep in mind that 1 can provide you with any information about Sunshine
on Schools that you wish. This concludes my testimony and I would be happy to answer any
questions you or any other committee members might have.

PO Box 3007 — Bismarck, ND 58502
Phone: (701)223-8155
Email: info@policynd.org
www.policynd.org



Mr. Chairman and other members of the House Appropriations Committee,

My name is Wayne Papke, and I’'m a financial advisor by profession. Today, I'm
speaking on behalf of Citizens for Responsible Government, a volunteer group based in

Bismarck that seeks to provide taxpayers with information about public policy.

I’'m testifying today in support of HB1377 for several reasons.

In my role as a financial advisor [ understand the importance of being open and
transparent. | disclose everything to my clients that they want to know about their
account, where there money is invested and about how much they will be charged in fees.
I've learned that being open and transparent is always the best policy. I expect nothing

less from my government.

[ ask my local government for a lot of information. Often times, | feel bad for asking for
50 many things because I know that government employees then have to take time out of
their busy schedules to retrieve the information. However, [ know that getting and
pouring over the information gives me peace of mind. 1 can view the data with my own

eyes and | then feel comfortable that my taxes are being well-spent.

Page 1 of 2



| first heard about efforts around the country to put all government budgets online at a
Citizens for Responsible Government meeting and I was intrigued. 1 thought it would be
a good idea for governments in North Dakota to do the same so | could access
information more efficiently and I wouldn’t have to bother government employees with

so many data requests.

HB1377 would go a long way towards giving me peace of mind that at any time I can go
lookup expenditure data on the web and view it through my own lens, not the lens of

government.

HB1377 also provides our leaders with a steady reminder that the taxpayers are always
watching, and that’s a good thing in light of events that have taken place across the
country, specifically in Illinois. I'm not accusing anyone of wrong-doing. I'm just
stating the obvious that the more someone is watched, the less likely they are to do

something that is corrupt or illegal.

It’s a worthy expenditure of government, Conservatives, such as myself, steadily beat a
drum against government programs, but making expenditure data more open to the public
is a truly legitimate function of government. In times like these where North Dakota is
lucky enough to have overflowing coffers, the state has a great opportunity to prove to

taxpayers that they are good stewards of their money.

Page 2 of 2
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Senate Appropriations Committee
Sen. Ray Holmberg, Chair

Harvest Room

Monday, March 2, 2009

Testimony in support of HB 1377 — Government Transparency

Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee:;

| am Representative Blair Thoreson, representing District 44 in Fargo. | testify today in
support of HB 1377, which will create a database of government expenditures. This

database will help to increase transparency in state expenditures.

Thomas lefferson once said, “We might hope to see the finances of the Union as clear and
intelligible as a merchant’s books, so that every member of Congress and every man of any
mind in the Union should be able to comprehend them, to investigate abuses, and
consequently control them.” | believe that those words are as prophetic today as they were

in Jefferson’s era.

The goal of this bill is a simple one: place all state expenditures on an easily searchable
website. With passage of this bill, the citizens of North Dakota will be able to quickly and
easily research budget issues on their own in the comfort of their homes. They won't have
to take much time out of their busy days to do a lot of research: making multiple phone
calls...writing to government for information..etc. With this website, expenditure

information will be at their fingertips.

In addition, by placing all expenditure data on a website, the state will show that it has
nothing to hide. By requesting that this data be placed online, citizens aren’t accusing the

government of wrong-doing. They are giving the state the opportunity to show taxpayers
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that power still does rest with the people and that the state wants citizens to be more

infarmed.

Opponents of placing expenditure data on the internet commonly give two reasons to
justify their position. They say that North Dakota already has good open records laws and
that citizens are already able to get this information. They aiso say that the cost of building

and maintaining such a website would not be worth the price.

| agree that our open records laws are good, and with passage of this legislation we will

give citizens an increased fevel of openness.

As for the cost of building this database, most of this information is already available in one
form or another electronically. The costs involved will be to develop software applications
which will extract it and place it in one central “clearinghouse”. This has been done in other
states using off-the-shelf software solutions, in addition to the free use of software

developed by a Washington-based organization “OMB Watch”.

| believe that our Office of Management and Budget, along with the professionals at ITD
and/or private-sector software providers, will be able to build this website for a minimal
cost. The revised fiscal note you see before you today shows an amount of $489,860,
which is a reduction from the original estimate of over $1 million. This revision was done
after ITD was requested to look at the costs involved, however | am not aware if they were

aware of the free software available to facilitate such a website.
Experience shows that such websites can be created at little or no cost to taxpayers:

* An unofficially floated fiscal note in Kansas put a $40 million price tag on the
creation of a searchable website for government expenditures. However, this cost
was highly inflated, and incorporated the overall cost of the entire financial

management system. Ultimately, the cost for creating the website was $0, because
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the vendor hired for the overall overhaul of the financial management system
agreed to incorporate the database website at no cost.

e The Oklahoma website (www.openbooks.ok.gov) initially carried a price tag of
$300,000. In the end the implementing agency reported that the website cost only
$8,000, plus expended staff time.

¢ The federal grant and contract website (www.USASpending.gov) and was estimated
to cost $19 million dollars over five years was put together at a price tag of less than

$1 million - and that covers grants and contracts of the entire federal government.

The state’s budget data should be easily searchable on a website because, let’s face it, it's
the 21st century. Jefferson stated that the government’s books should be as accessible as a
merchant’s. Most, if not nearly all, businesses now do their finances on computers. If we
are to heed Jefferson’s words, then we should keep pace with what the private sector is
doing and deliver government transparency through a vehicle that citizens use and

understand: the internet.

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, government transparency through a
searchable database is now being done in at least 13 other states. Kansas, through its

“Kanview” website (www.kansas.gov/kanview) was the first state to develop this window

into state government. Since then, Missouri {through an executive order), Nebraska,
Minnesota, and several others have followed suit. At the national level, the “Federal
Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006” has created a database of
expenditures by federal government. Interestingly, two of the co-sponsors of this
jegislation had their names in the news quite a bit lately: Sen. John McCain, and President

Barack Obama.

| believe, as they did, that both parties can agree that we need to be accountable to those

who pay government's bills: the taxpayer. It’s nota right-left issue...it's a right-wrong issue.
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Furthermore, it’s a common-sense idea that brings government into the 21st century and
will go a long way towards curing apathy, which, in the world of politics and government,

has become all too prevalent.

It has been noted that government transparency is "like an x-ray machine, allowing
taxpayers to look inside government and see how the money is being spent: every check
written, every contract let and every vendor receiving money.” It's time to provide our
citizens with receipts for the purchases made on their behalf by government. Remember,
sunshine is the best disinfectant. | ask that the Senate Appropriations Committee give a

DO PASS recommendation to HB 1377.

Mr. Chairman, this concludes my testimony. | would be happy to answer any questions.
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North Dakota Legislative Council
Senate Appropriations Committee

Testimony on HB 1377

Reported By: Randall Thurshy, Interim CIO
North Dakota University System

Mr. Chairman: Members of the Committee: My name is Randall Thursby, CIO for the
North Dakota University System. I have been asked to provide testimony regarding
House Bill 1377.

The North Dakota University System stands in opposition to the bill as written but does
not oppose the idea or the goal of the bill as we perceive it. Our opposition is based on
the following:

1. The cost to develop and sustain the database is not funded in any bill. Qur
understanding is that the Information Technology Department has developed an
estimate for the cost of database including the NDUS data in the ConnectND
Financial system but if those costs are not funded by the legislature and the costs
are billed to the agencies then it will divert resources from other critical projects.

2. The legislation requires that by the January first of each even-numbered year, the
director of the budget shall add data for the previous biennium to the budget
database website. However, it requires the agencies to report the data no later
than thirty days after the data becomes available to the agency. We do not
understand why agency reporting would need to occur more often than the end of
the bienntum or at least annually. The requirement to report no later than thirty
days after the data becomes available to the agency while the data is only updated
once a biennium by the director of budgets to the database website appears to add
an unnecessary burden to the agencies. It will also add complexity to the
development effort.

3. The effort may be premature. If needs are identified up-front the data can be
incorporated in the NDUS data warehouse that is under design without a separate
development required for NDUS in the state effort.

Mr. Chairman, that concludes my testimony.
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THE COST OF STATE ONLINE
SPENDING-TRANSPARENCY
INITIATIVES

EGISLATURES ARQUND THE country have begun
to propose spending-transparency Web sites.
The most effective argument against these
efforts is the potential high cost of such Web
sites. We looked at ten recently established state
spending sites and found that initial cost estimates often
overestimated the final cost. The cost of the surveyed sites

By Jerry Brito and Gabriel Okolski

MERCATUS CENTER
GEORGE MASON UNIVERSITY range from $30,000 to $300,000, and there is little cor-

relation between the amount spent and the quality of the
Web site.

INTRODUCTION

SENATORS BARACK OBAMA and Tom Coburn sponsored leg-
islation in 2006 to create a Web site that transparently details
all of the federal government’s expenditures. It can now be
found at USAspending.gov.

The idea is a simple one: By placing the details of every gov-
ernment purchase and contract online where citizens can
easily review them, the government will be much more
accountable, Why? First, hundreds or thousands of citizens’
eyes will pore over the newly transparent data, discovering
instances of previously unnoticed waste, fraud, and abuse. As
a result, one can expect that these constituents will hold their
elected representatives accountable and demand action. Sec-
ond, once government officials become aware of the height-
ened scrutiny created by a transparency Web site, they will
have an increased incentive to be mare careful, frugal, and to
think twice before making questionable expenditures.

State legislators and governors around the country have begun
to follow Obama and Coburn’s lead by introducing measures
to create state-spending Web sites. To date, about 20 states
have passed legislation or adopted executive orders creating

. some type of online fiscal database.
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One does not have to be a cynic to recognize that a proposal to
throw light on how politicians spend tax dollars—and there-
fore make it easier for citizens to hold them accountable—
might not be a very popular idea among politicians. Of course,
itis virtually impossible to oppose a transparency measure on
the grounds that one prefers more government secrecy and
less citizen scrutiny. As a result, the most persuasive reason
to oppose online transparency legislation is the potential high
cost of developing a searchable Web site.

While an online spending database may be desirable, critics
could contend, it may not be feasible given a cash-strapped
state budget. This is a legitimate concern. The facts show,
however, that governments have often overestimated the
cost of creating spending-transparency Web sites. Addition-
ally, there is some evidence to suggest that these sites produce
cost savings that may recover any initial outlay.

THE FEDS

WHEN SENATORS COBURN and Obama introduced the Fed-
eral Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, the
Congressional Budget Office estimated that creating and
maintaining the Web site the legislation mandated would cost
$15 million over five years.! It calculated that creating the Web
site would cost $10 million and maintaining it would cost $2
million annualiy.? Ultimately, however, the Office of Manage-
ment and Budget (OMB), which was tasked with developing
the site, was able to acquire the software and consulting it
needed to build the site for $600,000.* The agency purchased
it from OMB Watch, a liberal watchdog group that had devel-
oped the software for its own expenditure-tracking site, What
OMB Watch understood, and luckily made clear to OMB, is
that while one can certainly hire a contractor to build a $10
million site, quality Web sites do not have ta be expensive,
especially when using free open-source software tools.

THE STATES

AS ONLINE SPENDING-TRANSPARENCY biils were introduced
in legislatures around the country, state budget offices pre-
pared estimates of what those sites might cost. In figure 1,
we list ten states that have launched some type of spending
transparency Web site. For each state, we list the initial bud-
get-office estimate of how much the site would cost as well
as the final actual cost, Four states on our list launched their
sites as a result of executive order, so no initial budget office
estimates are available for them. However, the actual cost fig-
ures for these sites are instructive.

What we find is that although the quality of these sites varies,
the average actual cost for developing a spending-transpar-
ency Web site is about $140,000. The most expensive site we
locked at is Texas’s at $310,000. Additionally, the states often
overestimate the cost of creating spending-transparency Web

FIGURE 1: ESTIMATED AND ACTUAL COSTS FOR STATE
SPENDING-TRANSPARENCY WEB SITES

STATE ESTIMATED COST ACTUAL COST
Alaska* £0 $15,000-%25,000 from
existing budget®
Kansas® $280,000 to study $100,000°
possibility”
touisiana® $1 million for initial site LaTrac within existing
development™® resources''
Maryland® $400,000 over two fiscal | Less than $100,000™
years'
Missouri’™ EO $293,140 from existing
budget™
Nebraska" EQ $38,000'
Oklahoma' $40,000 for initial site $40,000 from existing
development® budget™
Sauth Carolina® | EO $25000-%$50,000 from
existing budget®
Texas™ $405,090° $310,000%¢
Washington® $,244,316 over six £300,000°
years?

sites. In no case has a site cost millions of dollars as some
budget estimates have suggested. For example, an estimate™
prepared by the Virginia Department of Planning and Bud-
get prompted Nebraska Treasurer Shane Osborn to write to
Virginia legislators:

| heard the same arguments about the cost of a searchable data-
base; we received an estimate of $1.1 miflion at one point. In the
end, we were able to shine light on Nebraska's budget at a cost to
the taxpayer of $38,000. . . . As far as the 33 million fiscal impact
statement attached to Virginia SB 936, I can't envision a situation in
which a budget site would even approach that price range.*

DATA AVAILABLE

NOT ALL STATE spending-transparency Web sites are created
equal. While each site aims to give the public a handle on state
financial activities, the breath of information provided and
the presentation of that data vary greatly across each of these
Web portals.

For example, Maryland’s Funding Accountability & Transparen-
cy site is limited to state payments in excess of $25,000 and does
not include information on state employee compensation, which
many other Web portals list. Other sites like Kansas’s KanView
include figures like state revenue and bond debt. In addition to
showing information on state expenditures, Oklahoma’s Open
Books and the Missouri Accountability Portal provide search-
able, but not browseable, data on tax credits for certain fiscal
years. Some sites also omit data because of differences in finan-
cial reporting methods; for example, Louisiana’s LaTrac site
does not include information on legislative and judicial branch
spending because of different financial reporting systems.
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When it comes to the data that are available, certain sites
provide an extremely comprehensive breakdown of spend-
ing information. Texas’s Where the Money Goes page allows
users to break down spending information by state agency,
spending category, the vendor from whom a purchase was
made, and the purchasing code. Certain databases, such as
Washington State Fiscal Information, break down payments
by fund or account, as opposed to by department.

USABILITY

ULTIMATELY, REGARDLESS OF the range and categories of
data being presented, ease of use is a key factor in effectively
disseminating state financial data to the public. Of the 10 sites
reviewed, Alaska’s is the only one that provides data in down-
loadable Microsoft Excel or PDF files and Washington's is the
only other site to offer data in Excel format. All other sites
utilize some sort of data viewer imbedded in the page to show
fiscal data by category. Once again, there is great variety as to
the ease of use of these tools.

Web sites such as Oklahoma’s Open Books, South Carolina’s
Spending Transparency, and Kansas’s KanView allow users
to browse spending by starting with a broad category (by
agency, for example) and to click on each item to obtain & fur-
ther breakdown of the data in each category. Washington State
Fiscal Information requires users to specify the information
they want from a series of drop-down menus, which is some-
what cumbersome, NebraskaSpending.com presents current
fiscal year spending information in a long table listing each state
agency. In general, those sites that let users click through the
data provide a simple and easy-to-use model; however it often
comes at the cost of having to view larger amounts of data.

While a few spending-transparency Web sites utilize a search
function for certain information, such as Oklahoma Open
Books's search of tax credit information and the Missouri
Accountability Portal's expenditure search by vendor, many
sites lack any such tool. Maryland’s Funding Accountability
& Transparency is one of the few standouts in this area, In
addition to browsing spending by state agency, by vendor,
and by vender ZIP code, visitors can use a prominently dis-
played search bar to find information in each of these cat-
egories. Implementing a simple tool such as this one would
help a number of states’ Web sites improve ease of access to
financial information. In the future, states may also consider
making their sites capable of supporting structures like data
feeds, which would be an effective way of keeping the public
updated on government activities.**

Overall, it is not clear whether the amount of money spent
on each state’s Web site correlates to the quality of the Web
site. Alaska, Nebraska, and South Carolina’s Web sites had
the lowest actual cost of those reviewed: $15,000-$25,000,
$38,000, and $25,000~$50,000, respectively. All of these sites

feature a simple design and show little more than spending
data. The similarly priced Oklahoma Web site, on the other
hand, includes state funding and revenue data, contains other
tools such as a “Citizen Education” section and glossary and
features a crisper design than those of Alaska, Nebraska, and
South Carolina. The Texas site, which had the highest price
tag, includes its own specialized data acquisition interface
that goes above and beyond the presentations of the other
Web sites: however it did not offer fundamentally different
information than other sites.

As already discussed, the rest of the Web sites, all falling with-
in the $100,000-$300,000 range, have a variety of strengths
and weaknesses pertaining to the type of data presented, the
years for which the data s offered, and the presentation to the
user. The key point underscored by some of the less-expensive
Web sites that provide a clean presentation of key spending
data is that all states are able to mount a solid effort at making
financial data more transparent through the Internet.

CONCLUSION

THE BOTTOM LINE is that official cost estimates of spending
transparency Web sites should be taken with a grain of salt—
especially those that put a price tag in the millions. Addition-
ally, the potential budget benefits of transparency should be
taken into account. For example, according to Texas Comp-
trotler Susan Combs, the state’s transparency initiative has
saved the state over $5 million.® This was possible because
the site facilitated the discovery of wasteful duplicative con-
tracts for express mail, printer toner, and other goods and ser-
vices that were later consolidated and renegotiated.

Because there is little correlation between the amount of money
spent and the quality of the final Web sites, this leads us to
conclude that the most important investment is in the design
and implementation of the site. Perhaps counterintuitively,
good sites can be inexpensive, but they require a knowledge-
able developer using state-of-the-art technology. One simple
way states can cut their costs and attract talented developers
is to provide raw data feeds rather than attempting to create a
user-friendly interface for the data. Third parties such as aca-
demices and watchdog groups can then take the data to build
useful interfaces that citizens can use.
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There is no uniform answer to the question of how much it costs to create a searchable oniine database for
government expenditures. To a certain extent, the price tag will depend on various factors including the overall
information technology infrastructure for the respective government, and the features sought after in the websites.
However, what we have found is that the actual cost of building a comprehensive searchable website for
government expenditures is in most cases far lower than the initial cost estimate, and spending transparency
portals can be built within existing revenues.

The Cost for USAspending.gov

The Congressional Budget Office estimated that implementing the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency
Act would cost $4 miltion in 2007 and about $15 million over the 2007-2011 period, assuming appropriation of the
necessary amounts. After the Office of Management and Budget purchased the underlying technology for
USAspending.gov from a third-party organization, OMB Watch, which hosts a similar website at
www. FedSpending.org, OMB was able to build the website for less than $1million. The purchase price for the software
was $600,000. OMB Watch has since offered its software to interested parties for free.

State Spending Transparency Cost

The cost for building the Missouri Accountability Portal has been estimated at $293,140. However, resources and staff
were merely re-allocated, so that there was no cost to taxpayers outside the existing budget framework. South Carolina,
too, constructed its transparency website by reallocating existing resources and staff time. And while there has been a
price tag associated with Comptroller Susan Combs's website in Texas ($310,000), this site, too, was built within existing
revenues.

In Oklahoma, the fiscal note for the legislation that created the spending transparency website estimated a total cost of
$300,000 - $400,000 for construction and $260,000 for maintenance and upgrades. The sponsor of the legislation has
since reported, that the software was purchased for $8,000, and the website was built and loaded by reallocating staff
time at no extra cost.

Compared to these examples, some fiscal notes in other states, which run in the millions of dollars, such as in
Michigan and Arizona, have been extremely high. This was the case in Kansas, too, where opponents claimed the
creation of the spending transparency website would cost $40 miltion. However, $40 million was the price tag for the
overhaul of the complete accounting system, the entire financial management system, which had already been
decided. Ultimately, the website construction was slipped into the bigger project, and the actual price tag for
implementation was $0.

Cost Actual Cost
Estimate

Federal |$19 milfion less than $1 million
Oklahoma [$300,000  |$8,000 plus staff time

Kansas $40 million $0 (because within existing program, if isolated, estimate is about
$100,000)
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